

ORDINANCE 2024-02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING DIVISION 4 (ACCESSORY STRUCTURES) OF ARTICLE VI (SUPPLEMENTARY DISTRICT REGULATIONS) OF CHAPTER 110 (ZONING) OF THE CITY'S LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO PROVIDE FOR APPLICABILITY; TO PROVIDE DEFINITIONS; TO REQUIRE BUILDING PERMITS FOR ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND PROVIDE FOR REGULATION OF CHICKEES; TO PROVIDE FOR MAINTENANCE OF ACCESSORY STRUCTURES; AMEND THE SETBACKS FOR REAR YARD ACCESSORY STRUCTURES ON LOTS ON WATER IN R-1 ZONING DISTRICT; AMEND THE SETBACKS FOR REAR YARD ACCESSORY STRUCTURES ON LOTS ON WATER IN R-2 ZONING DISTRICT; AMEND THE SETBACKS FOR ACCESSORY STRUCTURES IN C-4 ZONING DISTRICT AND ADD ALLOWANCES FOR FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATED STRUCTURES; ADD QUANTITY TO MAXIMUM SIZE OF ACCESSORY STRUCTURES IN R-1, R-2, AND R-3 ZONING DISTRICTS; AMEND THE MAXIMUM SIZE FOR ENCLOSED AND OPEN ACCESSORY STRUCTURES FOR SINGLE-FAMILY USE, DUPLEX AND MULTIFAMILY USE, AND TEMPORARY LODGING USE; ADD QUANTITY TO MAXIMUM SIZE OF ACCESSORY STRUCTURES IN C-1, C-2, C-3, AND C-4 ZONING DISTRICTS; ADD A SECTION TO ADDRESS CONSTRUCTION TRAILERS; ADD A SECTION TO ADDRESS OUTDOOR KITCHENS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY AND CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, City Staff has reviewed the current provisions of Division 4 (Accessory Structures) of Article VI (Supplementary District Regulations) of Chapter 110 (Zoning) of the Land Development Code of the City of Madeira Beach and recommends amending same; and

WHEREAS, the recommended changes were presented to and reviewed by the Planning Commission at a public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended approval of the proposed changes; and

WHEREAS, the recommendations of staff have been found meritorious by the Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has received input from the public at two public hearings.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That Division 4 (Accessory Structures) of Article VI (Supplementary District Regulations) of Chapter 110 (Zoning) of the Land Development Code of the City of Madeira Beach, Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 110-471. ~~Building permits required.~~Applicability of Division.

This division applies to all open and enclosed accessory structures that are not specifically exempt from this division.

Sec. 110-472. Definitions

The following terms and phrases used in this division have the following meanings.

Accessory Structure is a subordinate structure(s), the use of which is incidental to that of the principal structure and located on the same lot therewith.

Enclosed Accessory Structure means a structure with walls on all sides (e.g. a shed for outdoor equipment) and a roof.

Open Accessory Structure means an accessory structure containing three or more open sides between posts (e.g. gazebo, tiki hut, or chickees) and a roof. Open accessory structures are measured for area and setbacks from the outermost point of any roof overhang.

Outdoor Kitchen may only contain counterspace, grill, sink, and miniature refrigerator.

Height is measured from the average grade at the base of the accessory structure.

Sec. 110- 473. Building permits required.

Building permits are required for the construction or placement of all accessory structures. Chickees constructed by the Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida, or the Seminole Tribe of Florida are exempt from the Florida Building Code, but must obtain a building permit for planning and zoning purposes. As used in this paragraph,

the term "chickee" means an open-sided wooden hut that has a thatched roof of palm or palmetto or other traditional materials, and that does not incorporate any mechanical, electrical, plumbing, or other non-wood features.

Sec. 110-474. Maintenance of accessory structures.

After construction, all accessory structures must be maintained and remain substantially vertical to serve their function and aesthetic purposes. Structural integrity must be maintained to prevent the danger of destruction or flight during high winds.

Sec. 110-475. Excluded from permitting.

- (1) Outdoor storage containers not to exceed four feet long by four feet wide by three feet tall.
- (2) Removable sunshades provided that any pole is ten feet from any property line and the pole does not exceed six feet in height.

Sec. 110-4726. R-1, single-family residential zones.

Accessory structures may not be located in front yards in R-1, single-family residential zones.

- (1) *Lots not on water.* For lots not on water in R-1, single-family residential zones, accessory structures may be located in side or rear yards but must provide a minimum of 2½-foot setback to allow for vegetation control.
- (2) *Lots on water.* For lots on water in R-1, single-family residential zones, accessory structures may be located in side or rear yards. If the accessory structure is located in a side yard, a minimum of 2½-foot side setback must be provided. If the accessory structure is located in the rear yard, ~~the same rear setback as required for principal structures must be provided.~~ a minimum of a 7-foot side setback and 12-foot rear setback must be provided, so not to interfere with seawall tiebacks.

Sec. 110-4737. R-2, low density multifamily residential zones.

Accessory structures may not be located in front yards in R-2, low density multifamily residential zones.

- (1) *Lots not on water.* For lots not on water in R-2, low density multifamily residential zones, accessory structures may be located in side or rear yards but must provide a minimum of 2½-foot setback to allow for vegetation control.
- (2) *Lots on water.* For lots on water in R-2, low density multifamily residential zones, accessory structures may be located in side or rear yards. If the accessory structure is located in a side yard, a minimum of 2½-foot side setback must be provided. If the accessory structure is located in the rear yard, ~~the same rear~~

setback as required for principal structures must be provided. a minimum of a 5-foot side setback and 12-foot rear setback must be provided, so not to interfere with seawall tiebacks.

Sec. 110-474- 478. R-3, medium density multifamily residential zones.

Accessory structures (except carports) may not be located in front yards in R-3, medium density multifamily residential zones.

- (1) *Lots not on water.* For lots not on water in R-3, medium density multifamily residential zones, accessory structures (except carports) may be located in side yard, but must provide a five-foot minimum side setback. If the accessory structure is located in the rear yard, a minimum of two-foot setback must be provided to allow for vegetation control.
- (2) *Lots on water.* Accessory structures (except carports) on lots on water in R-3, medium density multifamily residential zones must provide the same setbacks as are required for the principal structure.
- (3) Carports in the R-3, medium density multifamily residential zones may be located in the front or side yard and must provide a five-foot side yard setback and ten-foot front yard setback.
- (4) The accessory structure must meet the intersection visibility requirement.

Sec. 110-4759. C-1, tourist commercial zones.

Accessory structures may not be located in front yards in C-1, tourist commercial zones.

- (1) *Lots not on water.* For lots not on water in C-1, tourist commercial zones, accessory structures may be located in side yard, but must provide a five-foot minimum side setback. If the accessory structure is located in the rear yard, a minimum of 2½-foot setback must be provided to allow for vegetation control.
- (2) *Lots on water.* Accessory structures on lots on water in C-1, tourist commercial zones must provide the same setbacks as are required for the principal structure.

Sec. 110-476480. C-2, John's Pass marine commercial zone.

Accessory structures may not be located in front yards in the C-2, John's Pass marine commercial zone. Accessory structures in the C-2, John's Pass marine commercial zone must provide the same side and rear setbacks as are required for the principal structure.

Sec. 110-477481. C-3, retail commercial zones.

Accessory structures may not be located in front yards in C-3, retail commercial zones. Accessory structures in C-3, retail commercial zones must provide the same side and rear setbacks as are required for the principal structure.

Sec. 110-478482. C-4, marine commercial zones.

Accessory structures may not be located in front yards in C-4, marine commercial zones. Accessory structures in C-4, marine commercial zones must provide a 10-foot side and rear setback. ~~the same side and rear setbacks as are required for the principal structure.~~ Accessory structures for working waterfronts or marina uses, which are required by federal or state regulations to be immediately proximate to the waters edge, are permitted within the required setback. Property owners must show documentation from the federal or state regulating board to permit accessory structures within the required setback.

Sec. 110-479483. P/SP, public-semi public zones.

There are no restrictions regarding accessory structures in P/SP, public-semi public zones. Accessory structures in P/SP, public-semi public zones must be consistent with site plan approval.

Sec. 110-480484. Maximum size and quantity in R-1, R-2 and R-3 zones.

- (1) Single-Family Use: Single-family structures may only have one enclosed and one open accessory structure. ~~For single-family structures, the~~ The maximum size for an enclosed accessory structure ~~will be~~ is eight feet wide by ten feet long by ~~eight ten~~ feet high. The total maximum size for all open accessory structures on the property is 3.5 percent of the total land area of the lot. The maximum height for an open accessory structure is 14 feet.
- (2) Duplex and Multifamily Use: Duplex and multifamily structures may only have two enclosed accessory structures, and one open accessory structure for every two dwelling units. ~~For duplex and multifamily structures, there may not be more than two~~ The maximum size for an enclosed accessory structures ~~for a maximum size of six is ten~~ feet wide by eight feet long by ~~eight ten~~ feet high ~~or a single-accessory structure eight feet by ten feet by eight feet.~~ The total maximum size for all open accessory structures on the property is 3.5 percent of the total land area of the lot. The maximum height for an open accessory structure is 14 feet.
- (3) Temporary Lodging Use: Temporary lodging structures may only have two enclosed accessory structures, and no limitation on the amount of open accessory structures. The maximum size for an enclosed accessory structure is eight feet wide by ten feet long by ten feet high. The total maximum size for all

open accessory structures on the property is 3.5 percent of the total land area of the lot. The maximum height for an open accessory structure is 14 feet.

(4) The maximum size of a carport in the R-3, medium density multifamily residential zone for single family structures, is 20 feet wide by 22 feet long by ten feet high. For single family structures, there may not be more than one carport. The limit to the number of carport structure for duplex, ~~and~~ multifamily, ~~and temporary lodging~~ structures will be regulated by parking requirements and the site plan approval process.

Sec. 110-~~481~~485. Maximum size and quantity in C-1, C-2, C-3 and C-4 zones.

~~An~~ The maximum size for an enclosed accessory structure ~~is not to exceed eight~~ 8 feet wide by 12 feet long by ~~eight~~ 10 feet high. Properties may ~~be installed and~~ only have one two enclosed and two open accessory ~~type~~ structures may be placed on any lot or group of lots under the same ownership. The total maximum size for all open accessory structures on the property is 3.5 percent of the total land area of the lot. The maximum height for an open accessory structure is 20 feet. -Accessory structures for working waterfronts or marina uses, which are required by federal, or state regulations do not count towards the number of structures and may exceed the maximum size with documentation that the additional size is required to maintain compliance.

Sec. 110-~~482~~486. Lot coverage.

The area covered by accessory structures shall be included in the allowable lot coverage.

Sec. 110-~~483~~487. Tiedowns.

All accessory structures must have tiedowns per the Standard current Florida Building Code. This also applies to all accessory type structures in place before the passage of the ordinance from which this section was derived.

Sec. 110-~~484~~ 488. Placement.

An accessory type structure may not be placed forward of the front entrance of the principal structure. In no case shall an accessory type structure be placed closer to any lot line adjacent to a street than provided for the principal structure nor closer than 18 feet to any seawall on the Gulf of Mexico.

Sec. 110-~~485~~ 489. Prohibited accessory structures.

Manufactured housing, mobile homes, semi-trailers and other motor vehicles shall not be permitted to be used as storage buildings or other such uses.

Sec. 110-490. Construction Trailers.

Construction trailers may only be on site if a building permit is issued, and construction must begin within 30 days of the construction trailer placement. Trailers must be removed

within 30 days after a Certificate of Occupancy is issued. Construction trailers are allowed five feet from any property line and must meet intersection visibility requirements in Section 110-423. Construction trailers must be removed from site during any named storm event or anchored per the current Florida Building Code. Temporary buildings or sheds used exclusively for construction purposes are exempt from the Florida Building Code but must retain a building permit.

Sec. 110-491 Outdoor Kitchens.

Outdoor kitchens must follow the setbacks for open accessory structures provided in this Division, the countertop structure cannot exceed a height of 36 inches from grade and cannot be larger than 50 square feet in area. The outdoor kitchen must be permanent and meet requirements in Section 94-140. If the outdoor kitchen contains a sink, it must be connected to a sewer line with an in-line isolation valve. Electricity must be isolated with disconnects from the primary structure. Plumbing lines must have back flow prevention. Any sewer, electrical or plumbing must be shut off during any named storm event.

Secs. 110-~~486~~492—110-500. Reserved.

Section 2. For purposes of codification of any existing section of the Madeira Beach Code herein amended, words **underlined** represent additions to original text, words **stricken** are deletions from the original text, and words neither underlined nor stricken remain unchanged.

Section 3. Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith to the extent that such conflict exists are hereby repealed.

Section 4. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction finds any part or provision of the Ordinance unconstitutional or unenforceable as a matter of law, the same shall be stricken and the remainder of the Ordinance shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 5. The Codifier shall codify the substantive amendments to the Land Development Code of the City of Madeira Beach contained in Section 1 of this Ordinance as provided for therein and shall not codify the exordial clauses nor any other sections not designated for codification.

Section 6. Pursuant to Florida Statutes §166.041(4), this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MADEIRA BEACH, FLORIDA, THIS _____ day of _____, 2024.

James "Jim" Rostek, Mayor

ATTEST:

Clara VanBlargan, MMC, MSM, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Thomas J. Trask, City Attorney

PASSED ON FIRST READING: _____

PUBLISHED: _____

PASSED ON SECOND READING: _____